# 2011 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Report

**Citation of Law or Resolution:** Per SL 2012-142

**Section Number:** Part XIII. Section 14.1.(f)

**Report Due Date:** September 1, 2012

**Report Submission Date:** September 1, 2012

**Receiving Entities:** 

Joint Legislative Commission on Governmental Operations Fiscal Research Division

# **Submitting Entity:**

North Carolina Department of Commerce Division of Community Assistance (DCA) Office of Community Investment (CI) Commerce Finance Center (CFC)

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

INTRODUCTION	3
2011 ALLOCATION	3
Table 1. 2011 HUD Allocation- Budgeted Funding	4
DETERMINATION OF NEED	4
CATEGORIES OF FUNDING	5
Scattered Site Housing	5
Small Business and Entrepreneurial Assistance	6
Economic Development	6
Infrastructure Hook-Up	8
Talent Enhancement Capacity Building	8
NC Tomorrow	9
Table 2. Use of 2011 HUD Allocation	11
Use of Recaptured Funds	11
Table 3. Grants Awarded With Recaptured Funds	12
TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE	12
PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS	14
Table 4. Grants awarded in July 1, 2010-June 2011 with recaptured funds and July 1, 20 2012 with HUD 2010 allocation.	
Table 5. Grants awarded July 1, 2011-June 2012 with recaptured funds and already clo final audit as of July 2012.	
Table 6. Grants awarded July 1, 2011-June 2012 with recaptured funds	16
Table 7. Grants awarded July 1, 2011-June 2012 with HUD 2011 allocation	18
Figure 1 Distribution of CDRG Grants	24

#### **INTRODUCTION**

The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds help local governments improve deteriorating residential neighborhoods, support public services, install water and sewer facilities for residential areas or to job-creating industrial sites, and provide loans or grants to large and small businesses. The North Carolina Department of Commerce's Community Investment and Assistance (CI) department administers CDBG funds for community development activities, while funds for economic development activities are administered by the North Carolina Commerce Finance Center (CFC).

This report outlines funding distributed during the 2011-2012 State fiscal year (FY2011-2012) of July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012 with the HUD 2011 program allocation, as well as with recaptured funds from previous program years. For project descriptions of individual grants, see Tables 4-7. For the statewide distribution of CDBG grants in this report, see Figure 1.

#### **2011 ALLOCATION**

In the 2011 HUD allocation year, North Carolina received \$41,131,631 for the State of North Carolina CDBG program. In the 2011 Annual Action Plan submitted to HUD, CI specified that it would provide assistance through the following programs: Economic Development, Infrastructure (and Infrastructure Hook-Up), NC Catalyst (and NC Tomorrow), Small Business Entrepreneurial Assistance, Talent Enhancement Demonstration Capacity Building, and Scattered Site Housing. As of June 30, 2012 Infrastructure and NC Catalyst have yet to be awarded or contracted. In addition, other funds may become available as a result of additional HUD allocations, recapture, reversion, or carry-over of prior year funds and program income.

After deducting administrative support and technical assistance (two (2) percent + \$100,000 and one (1) percent, respectively), approximately \$39,797,682 was available for distribution statewide using competitive and non-competitive approaches. Housing related activities were committed \$15 million (37.9%). Another \$2.7 million (6.9%) was allocated statewide for eligible activities that support job creation and stimulation through a competitive process. The NC Catalyst Program, a new program which consolidates several existing programs and activities was allocated \$8 million (20.3%). The remaining funds of \$13.9 million (34.9%) were designated for economic development and other non-housing related activities. All unused funds were designated for housing-related and contingency projects.

Table 1 below shows the difference between the proposed allocation of funds from the 2011 Annual Action Plan and the budgeted allocation of funds on the amended 2011 Investment Plan upon receipt of the HUD grant.

Table 1. 2011 HUD Allocation- Budgeted Funding

	Proposed in 20 Action Plan		Received 2011 Allocation From HUD		
Description	Amount	Percent	Amount	Percent	
HUD Grant to State	\$45,000,000		\$41,131,631		
State Administration	\$ 1,000,000	Less 2% + 100,000	\$922,633	Less 2% + 100,000	
State Technical Assistance	\$ 450,000	Less 1%	\$411,316	Less 1%	
Available For Distribution	\$43,550,000		\$39,797,682		
Category	Budget	Percent	Budget	Percent	
NC Catalyst	\$8,840,000	20.30%	\$8,078,335.46	20.30%	
Scattered Site Housing	\$16,500,000	37.89%	\$15,078,341.08	37.89%	
Infrastructure	\$8,000,000	18.37%	\$7,310,710.83	18.37%	
Economic Development	\$7,210,000	16.56%	\$6,588,778.13	16.56%	
Small Business/Entrepreneurship	\$3,000,000	6.89%	\$2,741,516.56	6.89%	
Capacity Building (**Using Recaptured Funds)	\$600,000	**	**	**	
TOTAL	\$44,150,000	100.00%	\$39,797,682.07	100.00%	

Accomplishments of the grants awarded with the 2011 HUD allocation will be highlighted in the 2012 Consolidated Annual performance Evaluation Report (CAPER) to HUD in March of 2013. Goals laid out in the 2011 Annual Action Plan have been met in most categories. However, due to the rising costs of construction, it remains difficult for CI and its grantees to continue to provide necessary services at past funding levels.

#### **DETERMINATION OF NEED**

CI saw continued success of the CDBG program in assisting low-to-moderate income persons with housing and infrastructure improvements. CI provided direct housing assistance to approximately 12,700 households in during the federal reporting period of January 2011-December 2011. Encapsulating all of CI's programs to include infrastructure, urgent needs, and other community development activities, households were provided assistance ranging from clean drinking water, improved public services, financial literacy training to help lift them out of poverty, employment possibilities that were non-existent prior to the business moving to where they lived, and access to medical and dental care that was previously unobtainable.

The need for the categories of the CDBG program was determined by comments generated at public hearings across the state. The CDBG Economic Development grant category is the only statewide program that specifically targets job creation or retention for low and moderate income persons. With a statewide unemployment rate of 9.6% (July/2012)<sup>1</sup>, there is a critical need for new jobs with benefits for low and moderate income households in North Carolina

#### **CATEGORIES OF FUNDING**

CI assisted individuals and families through the following major funding categories in the State FY 2011-2012 with the HUD 2011 CDBG program Allocation: Scattered Site Housing, Small Business and Entrepreneurial Assistance, Economic Development, Infrastructure Hook-Up, and Talent Enhancement Demonstration Capacity Building. The NC Catalyst and Infrastructure categories intend to be awarded and contracted after July 1, 2012. In addition, contingency grants were awarded with recaptured funds. Some funding categories are specific to housing activities (e.g. Scattered Site), while others have a broader community development focus (e.g. Small Business), as discussed in the following sections.

## <u>Scattered Site Housing</u>

Scattered Site Housing (SSH) grants are made to local county governments on a non-competitive rotating basis to address housing needs of very low income families throughout the county. County governments can receive \$400,000 every 3 years with funds targeted to very low-income homeowners for rehabilitation or replacement purposes. Counties submit a detailed plan that includes all interested municipalities within the county describing how funds will be distributed to meet housing needs. Scattered Site Housing applicants may request that up to ten (10) percent of funds be set aside for local option to undertake emergency repairs or repair/replace on-site well and/or septic systems. Those counties that accomplish their goals and exhaust funds within two years are eligible to receive up to an additional \$100,000 to continue activities allowed in the SSH category, *subject to funding availability*. Selection criteria for Scattered Site Housing awards include: community need, community impact, project design, financial feasibility, distribution plan, and participation process.

<u>Number of Applications Received:</u> Thirty-one (31) Scattered Site Housing (SSH) projects were submitted to CI in 2011 for distribution to communities in North Carolina to provide LMI households with safe, decent, sanitary housing either through rehabilitation or relocation.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, http://www.bls.gov/web/laus/laumstrk.htm

Dollar Amount Requested: \$12,600,000.00

<u>Awards:</u> Twenty-nine (29) SSH grants have been awarded from the HUD 2011 program allocation totaling \$11.6 million. The two (2) remaining applicants intend to be awarded after July 1, 2012.

### Small Business and Entrepreneurial Assistance

Small Business and Entrepreneurship (SBEA) funding assists local governments to jumpstart growth of existing small businesses, thus creating new jobs or retaining existing jobs (Note: Job retention is very narrowly defined by HUD and job retention projects must meet HUD's criteria). This assistance must lead to the creation or retention of jobs primarily benefiting low- and moderate-income (LMI) persons. The proposed project must also include a plan for creating an entrepreneurial environment in the community, one that would support and sustain continued economic development and job creation even after funding for this program has been expended.

The SBEA program was designed to benefit LMI persons through job creation or retention. Funding eligibility is contingent upon the creation or retention of permanent, full-time jobs, at least 70% of which must be made available to persons earning 80 percent or less of the median income for the area within the previous 12 months. (For purposes of the CDBG program, LMI family income eligibility is determined from data published annually for the HUD Section 8 housing program.) To review the federal fiscal year 2011 income limits for North Carolina, visit <a href="http://www.huduser.org/datasets/il.html">http://www.huduser.org/datasets/il.html</a>.

Selection criteria of the SBEA program are appropriateness and feasibility of business activities, appropriateness of plan for creating an entrepreneurial environment, local commitment and community partnerships, timely and effective public participation, and grant administration capacity and past performance.

Number of Applications Received: 14

Dollar Amount Requested: \$3,046,700.00

<u>Awards:</u> CI awarded thirteen (13) applications for SBEA in June 2012 with the 2011 CDBG program allocation, totaling \$2,596,700.00. The remaining applicant was awarded \$250,000 with funds recaptured from the 2008 program year.

#### **Economic Development**

The Economic Development (ED) grant category is administered by the Commerce Finance Center (CFC) and will continue the policy of providing higher levels of funding to the most economically distressed areas of the state. The awards were made to local governments who, working with private companies, will create or retain jobs for low-to-moderate income residents in their communities. The following considerations will be included for job creation and retention projects during the 2011 program year: 60% of the jobs created or retained in a project must benefit persons qualifying as prior low and moderate income (LMI). Funding for ED projects is based on the number of jobs to be created or retained and the level of distress in the community applying for the funds. Areas with higher distress rankings, based on the North Carolina Tier rating system, are eligible for more funds per job created.

CDBG funds are granted to local governments for various types of infrastructure improvements to assist business expansion or retention. A local funding match of at least one dollar for every three CDBG dollars is required except for the 25 most distressed counties as ranked for the Article 3J Tax Credits legislation. In a secondary priority to infrastructure projects and at the discretion of the Secretary of Commerce, direct financial assistance to private companies is available as loans to be negotiated by the local government applicant and a participating North Carolina commercial bank at a level not to exceed 50% of the bank loan. Repayment of the loan by the private company becomes program income to the State and is deposited into a CDBG economic development revolving loan fund (RLF). Funding from the RLF is available only as loans.

Loans for industrial shell buildings are available from the RLF based on the projected number of jobs to be created and the level of distress in the community. These loans will be at a 2% interest rate with a maximum term of 5 years. Principle payments are deferred for the first two years of the loan. A dollar for dollar match is required by the local government applicant for an industrial shell building.

Funds are granted to local governments that propose a project in conjunction with a private for-profit business that proposes to restore a vacant building to economic use resulting in the creation of permanent, full-time jobs by the project company. To be eligible, documentation must be provided showing the building has been vacant thirty (30) consecutive days or more. CDBG funds for this category are limited to a maximum of \$750,000 per unit of government per program year. The grant amount is calculated based on \$20,000 per job for 3J Tax Credit eligible businesses and \$12,000 per job for businesses not eligible for tax credits. CDBG funds provided to the company by the local unit of government will be in the form of a forgiven loan. The loan has a term of five years with no principal or interest payments. If the project company retains the jobs pledged in the loan agreement for the five year term, the entire amount is forgiven.

Certain threshold requirements apply, including: \$1.25 million cap for the yearly funding cycle, expenditure levels of open grants, and proper closeout of previous grants.

Number of Applications Received: 13

**Dollar Amount Requested:** \$7,142,646

Accomplishments: Eight (8) ED grants were awarded using 2011 HUD allocation during July 1, 2011-June 30, 2012 with a total amount of \$5,002,000.00. The awards are expected to create or retain 1,285 jobs, of which 818 are expected to be LMI. Five (5) awards totaling \$2,140,646 were awarded with recaptured funds. Performance outcomes will be reported in the 2012 CAPER.

## Infrastructure Hook-Up

As a subset of the Infrastructure category, Infrastructure Hook-Up (IFHU) grants are made available to eligible local governments applying on a first-come, first-serve basis. Eligible activities include costs and fees associated with connecting lower income families to existing non-CDBG water or sewer lines.

Selection criteria include eligibility and conformity in previous grant cycles, proper closeouts of previous grants, and meeting 100% LMI benefit. A balanced distribution of program funds will also be considered as a factor in making awards. Applications will be accepted in an open window cycle in a 2-step process until allocated funds are depleted or until a specified date.

Number of Applications Received: 13

Amount of Funds Requested: \$915,000.00

<u>Awards:</u> CI awarded all thirteen (13) applications for IFHU in June 2012 with the 2011 CDBG program allocation, totaling \$915,000.00.

## **Talent Enhancement Capacity Building**

The Talent Enhancement Capacity Building (TECB) and Talent Enhancement Demonstration (TED) grants are part of a collaborative with East Carolina University's Office of Engagement, Innovation and Economic Development. The grants are intended to target local units of government with challenges of developing talent in smaller, rural economies in North Carolina. The goal of TECB grant is to provide for local units of government and non-profits (in partnership with local units of government) the opportunity to build capacity in the following areas: to develop appropriate and competitive CDBG grants, administer CDBG grants, grant writing, grant administration, economic impact analyses, community survey research and design, grant administration and writing, and feasibility study preparation. The grants are awarded through a first come, first serve competitive process with priority given to Tier 1 counties and local government in 21st century Communities. A Talent Enhancement Capacity Building Grantee must submit a future application in one of CI's CDBG grant categories.

Selection criteria of TECB include previous CDBG experience, feasibility of the project to result in a future CDBG application, and financial feasibility of the non-profit to carry out the project and any future products.

Number of Applications Received: 13

Dollar Amount Requested: \$600,000.00

<u>Awards:</u> In September 2011, twelve (12) talent enhancement awards were granted, totaling \$600,000.00 using the 2011 HUD allocation. The remaining applicant was awarded \$50,000 with funds recaptured from the 2002 program year.

#### **NC Tomorrow**

North Carolina Tomorrow is a pilot program to spur regional planning for viable sustainable communities throughout North Carolina, assisting the NC Department of Commerce in establishing a baseline for today with a focus tomorrow. As a branch of the NC Catalyst program, the NC Tomorrow planning initiative will center on the six livability principles established by the federal Partnership for Sustainable Communities of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), Department of transportation (DOT), and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) <a href="http://www.sustainablecommunities.gov/">http://www.sustainablecommunities.gov/</a>. The six livability principles are:

- Provide more transportation choices
- Promote equitable, affordable housing
- > Enhance economic competitiveness
- Support existing communities
- Coordinate and leverage federal policies and investment
- Value communities and neighborhoods

The NC Tomorrow Program will provide planning grants to as many as 17 non-entitlement local governments serving as the lead regional coordinator within each of the 17 Council of Governments (COGs) regions. In exchange for the grant, the non-entitlement local unit of government must foster regional multi-jurisdictional participation around the program goals and develop a Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) to eventually be part of a statewide plan. A total of \$1,275,000 of proposed 2011 CDBG funds has been set aside for planning grants under this program, under the NC Catalyst Program. A maximum of \$75,000 will be awarded to a non-entitlement local government serving as the lead regional coordinator. The grantee may use up to \$7,500 for grant administration.

Collectively, the regional NC Tomorrow Sustainable Strategic Plans will provide data and identify strategies and practices within the region that will lead to strong sustainable

communities within the region. At a minimum, the local unit of government regional coordinator must develop a regional plan incorporating data and strategies that include:

## • Affordable Housing

- Increase the housing supply for low-to-moderate income (LMI) persons
- Improves and preserves existing housing in the region

## • Job Creation and Retention

- Creates and/or retains jobs for LMI income persons

## • Equitable Opportunities

- Promotes equitable housing and employment opportunities
- Includes open and fair economic competition

## • Accessible Transportation

- Enhance transportation choices to allow LMI persons to access affordable housing and jobs

#### Land Use

Provides open space and agricultural resources

#### Health

- Promotes public health
- Increases accessibility to health services

## • Energy Conservation

- Increases energy conservation
- Reduces fossil fuel dependency through energy efficient building and energy efficient technology

#### • Diverse Investments

- Indentifies and leverages investment from local, regional, state, federal, and private funding sources

<u>Selection Criteria</u>: The applicants must demonstrate multi-jurisdictional participation in the identified COG region, provide a timeline for preparing and submitting the regional Sustainable Strategic Plan, and provide evidence of at least one public hearing to explain the initiative to citizens.

Although the program is non-competitive, CI reserves the right not to fund applications when multiple applications come in from the same region, when a lead non-entitlement local government fails to demonstrate CDBG-administration experience, and when the local unit of government or proposed primary grant administrator has CDBG performance issues on past and present CDBG grants. Any remaining funds may be used to increase grant awards in regions requesting funds on a first-come, first-served basis and demonstrating progress in the region based on CI's assessment.

Number of Applications Received: 17

**Dollar Amount Requested:** \$850,000

Dollar Amount Awarded: \$850,000

<u>Accomplishments:</u> Seventeen (17) NC Tomorrow grants at \$50,000 each (total of \$850,000) were awarded in February 2012 from the 2011 HUD allocation. Performance outcomes will appear in the 2012 CAPER.

**Table 2** below illustrates the totals numbers and dollar amount of grants awarded thus far with 2011 HUD allocation.

Table 2. Use of 2011 HUD Allocation

2011 Allocation from HUD (after Admin and TA)	\$39,797,682	Number of Awards
Subtotals Awarded		
Scattered Site Housing	\$11,600,000.00	29
Small Business & Entrepreneurial Assistance	\$2,596,700.00	13
Infrastructure Hook-Up	\$915,000.00	13
NC Tomorrow	\$850,000.00	17
Talent Enhancement Demonstration/Capacity Building	\$600,000.00	12
Subtotal CI Awarded	\$16,561,700.00	84
Subtotal CFC Awarded: Economic Development	\$5,002,000.00	8
Total CDBG 2011 Awarded	\$21,563,700.00	113
Remaining 2011 Balance	\$18,233,982.00	IF & Catalyst pending

## **Use of Recaptured Funds**

Some grants are not awarded with a specific HUD allocation program year. These funds are a result of recapture, reversion (de-obligation), and program income. Table 3 below illustrates the number of grants and funding awarded during the State fiscal year of July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012 with recaptured funds. For project descriptions of individual grants, see Tables 4-6. Accomplishments of these grants are highlighted in the annual CAPER to HUD. Descriptions of Infrastructure, Community Revitalization, Housing Development, and Contingency are in last year's annual report.

Table 3. Grants Awarded With Recaptured Funds

Grants Awarded with Recaptured Funds (Funded July 1, 2011-June 30, 2012)										
Category	Number of Awards	<b>Grant Award Amount</b>								
Economic Development	5	\$2,140,646.00								
Scattered Site Housing	4	\$477,368.47								
Small Business & Entrepreneurial Assistance	2	\$260,136.60								
Infrastructure Hook-Ups	3	\$186,178.40								
Talent Enhancement Demonstration	2	\$100,000.00								
Talent Enhancement Capacity Building	1	\$50,000.00								
Infrastructure	6	\$2,144,400.00								
Community Revitalization	6	\$1,587,484.17								
Housing Development Tax Credit	1	\$24,308.41								
Contingency	3	\$1,134,836.94								
Total	33	\$8,105,358.99								

#### **TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE**

Technical Assistance (TA) funds are used to develop the professional skills and capabilities of local community development grant administrators. Funds are not only used for CI staff to attend workshops and conferences, but used to hold a variety of workshops, conference calls, and seminars throughout the year, taught by CI staff and others. In 2011, technical assistance priorities included: (1) increased technical assistance to local governments and their agents that furthers the goals and priorities of the CDBG program, (2) technical assistance to developing community development corporations, and (3) increased support for workshops, seminars, and training for grantees and staff.

CI continued its annual CDBG training academy in 2011, as part of the Community Development Academy offered by the School of Government at the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill. The purpose of this academy is to train community development professionals in best practices and to make them aware of all possible resources at their disposal as they attempt to better the living conditions and economic opportunity of their residents. Participants that complete the course and pass an exam receive a certificate of completion, indicating knowledge of community development topics. The participants represented practitioners from the public, nonprofit, and private sectors. One aspect of this training is the instruction by CI staff on proper administration and development of CDBG grant programs and compliance of grantees.

During the 2011 program year, division staff presented at various workshops, conferences and other training opportunities in order to further reach out to community development

professionals and provide technical assistance as often as necessary. In addition to one-on-one consultation with local governments, councils of government, and consultants, CI staff members provided technical assistance to a number of non-profit and local government advocacy groups including the North Carolina Community Development Association (NCCDA) semi-annual workshops, the School of Government at the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill annual workshops, North Carolina Community Action Agencies, the North Carolina League of Municipalities, and the North Carolina Housing Coalition.

As reported in the CAPER to HUD, CI held numerous workshops throughout the year. Topics included CDBG programs and application process requirements (approximately 100 participants), energy efficiency and conservation, Section 3, limited English proficiency, affirmatively furthering fair housing, federal labor standards, and the environmental review process. Grant-specific workshops were held for the Scattered Site Housing and Small Business and Entrepreneurial Assistance Grant categories. The Division held full-day workshops for contractors and rehabilitation specialists during the year for the new 2012 building codes. One of those workshops involved the HUD Greensboro Regional Office coming to talk to Consolidated Plan partners for internal staff training.

In addition, notifications for any workshop and training opportunities provided by CI, HUD, and our partners are distributed on CI's various listservs and distribution lists, and posted on our website to inform the public and grantees.

## **PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS**

The tables on the following pages details the grants awarded by HUD allocation, grant category, county name where project is located, name of grantee/designation, grant amount, grant number and project description. Figure 1 below illustrates the statewide distribution of CDBG grants in this report by grant category.

Table 4. Grants awarded in July 1, 2010-June 2011 with recaptured funds and July 1, 2011-June 2012 with HUD 2010 allocation.

Category	County	Grantee Name	Designation	Contracted	Grant Amount	Grant #	HUD Allocation	Project Description
Community Revitalization	Alexander	Alexander	County	09/15/10	\$389,105.00	02-D-2080	B-02-DC- 37-0001	Installation of approximately 1,730 LF of 8" waterline, clearance of 2 mobile homes and a storage trailer, rehabilitation of 4 privately owned dwellings along Hoyle Keller Loop
Contingency	Robeson	Pembroke	Town	12/01/10	\$553,500.00	06-D-2091	B-06-DC- 37-0001	CDBG funds will be used for construction or rehabilitation of commercial and industrial buildings for Pembroke "Our House" Perinatal Facility, planning and administration.
Housing Development	Moore	Aberdeen	Town	08/22/11	\$250,000.00	10-C-2207	B-10-DC- 37-0001	Installation of approx. 1,050 LF of 6" water main; 470 LF of 8" gravity sewer; 14 residential water and sewer connections; 980 LF of 22" wide streets with curb, gutter, and sidewalks; to serve 14 homes constructed by Habitat for Humanity of the NC Sandhills (Midway Gardens)
Housing Development	Henderson	Hendersonville	City	08/22/11	\$140,000.00	10-C-2218	B-10-DC- 37-0001	Street improvements, pedestrian improvements, landscaping, and lighting to support a 56 unit affordable Oak Haven multi-family housing for the elderly development.
Housing Development	Surry	Surry	County	08/22/11	\$90,000.00	10-C-2216	B-10-DC- 37-0001	Installation of approx. 700 LF of new street to serve a 5 unit single family housing community along Van Hoy Way
Small Business & Entrepreneurial Assistance	Surry	Surry	County	11/24/10	\$150,000.00	02-D-2090	B-02-DC- 37-0001	Installation of approx. 20,000 LF of 6" and 8" waterline; 300,000 gallon elevated storage tank; 3,500 LF of 8" gravity sewer lines; 5,400 sewer force main lines; and one duplex submersible sewer pump station to serve Brintles Enterprises

Table 5. Grants awarded July 1, 2011-June 2012 with recaptured funds and already closed pending final audit as of July 2012.

Category	County	Grantee	Designation	Contracted	Grant Amount	Grant #	Allocation	Project Description
Community Revitalization	Columbus	Tabor City	Town	03/30/11	\$78,920.40	06-D-2099	B-06-DC- 37-0001	Expand the activities proposed for the park and recreation facility along Swamp Fox Project II. Supplemental assistance to grants 05-D-2059 and 10-C-2158
Housing Development Tax Credit	Bladen	Elizabethtown	Town	04/08/11	\$24,308.41	05-D-2176	B-05-DC- 37-0001	CDBG funds will be used for sewer improvements and administration. The project will enhance the sewer activity by the installation of a new generator for the existing Lift Station to serve 40 households.
Infrastructure Hook-Ups	Craven	Cove City	Town	04/08/11	\$49,000.00	05-D-2174	B-05-DC- 37-0001	CDBG funds will be used for rehabilitation of privately owned dwelling and planning.
Infrastructure Hook-Ups	Rutherford	Ellenboro	Town	01/10/11	\$51,378.40	04-D-2086	B-04-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitation of privately owned LMI dwellings (water hook- up connections) of 20 units and administration
Scattered Site Housing	Lenoir	Lenoir	County	04/08/11	\$79,322.57	05-D-2175	B-05-DC- 37-0001	CDBG funds will be used for clearance activities, relocation assistance and administration.
Small Business & Entrepreneurial Assistance	Martin	Robersonville	Town	07/07/11	\$10,138.60	07-D-2199	B-07-DC- 37-0001	The Town of Robersonville will finance renovations and improvements to one of the existing buildings to accommodate warehouse cold storage and a distribution facility for Robersonville Packing Company, Inc.

Table 6. Grants awarded July 1, 2011-June 2012 with recaptured funds.

Category	County	Grantee Name	Designation	Contracted	Grant Amount	Grant #	HUD Allocation	Project Description
Community Revitalization	Sampson	Clinton	City	04/08/11	\$320,000.00	07-D-2178	B-07-DC- 37-0001	Clearance/reconstruction of 2 LMI privately owned dwellings and rehabilitation of 4 LMI dwellings for Community Revitalization Russell Street/Pugh Road Phase II
Community Revitalization	Craven	Craven	County	03/30/11	\$250,000.00	05-D-2098	B-05-DC- 37-0001	James City Phase II project of clearance/reconstruction of 2 LMI privately owned dwellings and supplemental to grant 05-D-2055 (Installation of 600 LF of drainage pipe/ditch/swale; 850 LF of 6" waterline; 1 fire hydrant; 142 LF of 24 FT wide asphalt road (dedicated to DOT)
Community Revitalization	Alamance	Haw River	Town	04/08/11	\$100,000.00	04-D-2177	B-04-DC- 37-0001	Community Revitalization Phase II of street improvements, rehabilitation of 2 privately owned dwellings, and administration.
Community Revitalization	Person	Roxboro	City	03/01/11	\$529,539.31	03-D-2097	B-03-DC- 37-0001	Cavel Village Phase II is rehabilitation of approx. 12 homes and funding to supplement grant 08-C-1879 (2600LF of 8" sewer with 27 connections; street resurfacing; repair/replacement of draining structures and sidewalks; purchase, rehabilitation, and creation of a police residence; rehabilitation of 26 homes) along Hick's Circle and Kerr Drive. Total Project cost is \$1,552,539.31
Community Revitalization	Caswell	Yanceyville	Town	03/01/11	\$309,024.46	01-D-2095	B-01-DC- 37-0001	Community Revitalization Phase II is rehabilitation of 5 homes; acquisition and clearance of mobile home park (relocation of 7 mobile homes); supplemental financial assistance to grants 09-R-1981 and 08-C-1929
Contingency	Hyde	Hyde	County	06/14/11	\$600,000.00	05-D-2194	B-05-DC- 37-0001	CDBG funds will be used for public sewer improvements along US 264, planning and administration.
Contingency	Halifax	Scotland Neck	Town	06/14/11	\$225,000.00	02-D-2193	B-02-DC- 37-0001	CDBG funds will be used for public water improvements and administration extension & installation of municipal water service with attendant appliances and hook-ups to 9 residences. Street Improvements on Higgs Rd. and Trice Rd. \$529,725.00 other funds are budgeted.
Contingency	Stanly	Stanly	County	07/07/11	\$309,836.94	04-D-2200	B-04-DC- 37-0001	Infrastructure water hook-up to serve 120 LMI units
Economic Development	Cleveland	Boiling Springs	Town	10/06/11	\$225,000.00	06-D-2235	B-06-DC- 37-0001	Construct 14,500 LF of 2 inch force main for B&W Fiber Glass. Total Project cost is \$370,000
Economic Development	Catawba	Conover	City	08/01/11	\$750,000.00	06-D-2205	B-06-DC- 37-0001	Renovate electrical, plumbing, and HVAC systems for 105,000 square feet vacant Lee Industries building. Total project cost is \$5,965,960.

Economic Development	Alamance	Haw River	Town	07/25/11	\$160,000.00	07-D-2202	B-07-DC- 37-0001	Renovate electrical, plumbing, and HVAC systems in 27,560 square feet vacant Franklin Products industrial building. Total project cost is \$320,000.
Economic Development	McDowell	McDowell	County	09/14/11	\$750,000.00	05-D-2229	B-05-DC- 37-0001	Renovate electrical, plumbing, and HVAC systems of 283,568 vacant Rock Tenn industrial building. Total project cost is \$7,744,302.
Economic Development	Scotland	Scotland	County	08/04/11	\$255,646.00	07-D-2206	B-07-DC- 37-0001	Construct 1,900 LF of 4 inch force main and 400 LF of 8 inch gravity sewer for FCC
Infrastructure	Wilson	Black Creek	Town	01/10/11	\$75,431.00	03-D-2083	B-03-DC- 37-0001	CDBG funds will be used for public sewer improvements, planning and administration for Church Loop North (State Road 1618). Total project cost is \$79,203.
Infrastructure	Sampson	Clinton	City	01/10/11	\$214,069.00	04-D-2088	B-04-DC- 37-0001	Installation of 720 LF of 8" sewer line and replacement of 1560 LF of 8" waterline to serve 6 housing units for Pugh Road Water and Sewer Project. \$12,000.00 of other funds are budgeted.
Infrastructure	Gaston	High Shoals	City	01/10/11	\$750,000.00	05-D-2094	B-05-DC- 37-0001	4480LF of sewer to serve 35 households
Infrastructure	Davidson	Lexington	City	01/10/11	\$305,900.00	03-D-2084	B-03-DC- 37-0001	Cow Palace Phase I is installation of approx. 3075 LF of 8" gravity sewer with 32 house connections to sections of Cow Palace Rd., Vanmar Dr., and Bedford Dr. Total project cost is \$322,000.00
Infrastructure	Chatham	Pittsboro	Town	01/10/11	\$750,000.00	05-D-2087	B-05-DC- 37-0001	Replacement of 4500LF of existing AC pipe with approx. 6340 LF of 12" and 6" PC 350 Ductile Iron Pipe waterline to serve 1339 units along Hillsboro. \$508,730 of other funding is budgeted.
Infrastructure Hook-Ups	Craven	New Bern	City	01/10/11	\$59,800.00	07-D-2093	B-07-DC- 37-0001	Infrastructure sewer hook-up to serve 10 units (empty and fill septic tanks and grease traps).
Infrastructure Hook-Ups	Orange	Orange	County	01/10/11	\$75,000.00	04-D-2085	B-04-DC- 37-0001	Water hook-up to 4 homes and sewer hook-up to 5 homes along Rogers Road
Scattered Site Housing	Catawba	Catawba	County	05/03/11	\$96,956.97	07-D-2181	B-07-DC- 37-0001	CDBG funds will be used for emergency repair and rehabilitation of privately owned dwellings and administration.
Scattered Site Housing	Jackson	Jackson	County	03/01/11	\$216,088.93	02-D-2096	B-02-DC- 37-0001	Clearance and reconstruction of 2 dwellings.
Scattered Site Housing	Pamlico	Pamlico	County	04/01/11	\$85,000.00	05-D-2162	B-05-DC- 37-0001	CDBG funds will be used for relocation assistance for 1 dwelling, and administration.
Small Business & Entrepreneurial Assistance	Anson	Anson	County	05/11/12	\$250,000.00	08-D-2287	B-08-DC- 37-0001	Create 10 new jobs and acquire new heavy-duty machinery and equipment for Carolina Apparel. \$142,500.00 of other funds are budgeted- including match from business, the County, and in-kind administrative support
Talent Enhancement Capacity Building	Perquimans	Winfall	Town	09/12/11	\$50,000.00	02-D-2234	B-02-DC- 37-0001	Planning & Administration to train staff at East Carolina for grant preparation

Table 7. Grants awarded July 1, 2011-June 2012 with HUD 2011 allocation.

Grant Category	County	Grantee Name	Designation	Award Date	Grant Amount	Grant #	HUD Allocation	Project Description
Economic Development	Davidson	Davidson	County	12/05/11	\$750,000.00	11-E-2263	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Renovate electrical, plumbing, and HVAC systems in 35,000 square ft vacant industrial building for Lolly Doodle (total Project cost \$1,500,000)
Economic Development	Gates	Gates	County	04/17/12	\$350,000.00	11-E-2286	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Construct 50,000 gallon per day waste water package treatment plant for Gates Health Investors (Total project cost = \$5,872,423)
Economic Development	Jones	Jones	County	02/07/12	\$456,000.00	11-E-2266	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Construct 1,835 LF of 8" sewer line, pump station, 3,150 LF of 6" force main and a 1,100 LF industrial Access Road (total Project Cost = \$1,235,000)
Economic Development	Davidson	Lexington	City	12/21/11	\$300,000.00	11-E-2264	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Construct 7,500 LF of 8" natural gas line for Lowes (Total Project cost = \$404,557)
Economic Development	Northampton	Northampton	County	05/21/12	\$930,000.00	11-E-2288	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Construct 250,000 gallon ground water storage tank for Enviva Water (Total Project Cost = \$63,653,088)
Economic Development	Rutherford	Rutherford	County	03/16/12	\$1,000,000.00	11-E-2284	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Construct 9,500 LF and 9,700 LF of 4" sewer force main for Horsehead (Total Project Cost = \$13,032,281)
Economic Development	Iredell	Statesville	City	03/16/12	\$466,000.00	11-E-2285	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Renovate electrical, plumbing, and HVAC Systems in vacant 100,000 square feet Pate-Dawson industrial building (Total Project Cost = \$26,000,000)
Economic Development	Vance	Vance	County	09/14/11	\$750,000.00	11-E-2250	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Renovate electrical, plumbing, and HVAC systems in 100,000 square ft vacant Semprius industrial building (Total Project cost = \$7,351,090)
Infrastructure Hook-Ups	Bertie	Bertie	County	06/11/12	\$50,000.00	11-C-2289	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Connection of 17 LMI households to County water facilities.
Infrastructure Hook-Ups	Brunswick	Brunswick	County	06/11/12	\$75,000.00	11-C-2290	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Water hook-up assistance for 30 LMI households
Infrastructure Hook-Ups	Richmond	Dobbins Heights	Town	06/11/12	\$75,000.00	11-C-2291	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Sewer hook-ups to 15 residences owned and occupied by LMI persons
Infrastructure Hook-Ups	Duplin	Duplin	County	06/11/12	\$75,000.00	11-C-2292	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Connect 25 units to existing water lines
Infrastructure Hook-Ups	Halifax	Enfield	Town	06/11/12	\$75,000.00	11-C-2293	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Replace failing aged (over 20 yrs.) environmentally problematic hook-up lines and appliances.
Infrastructure Hook-Ups	Martin	Martin	County	06/11/12	\$75,000.00	11-C-2294	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Connect 25 units to existing water lines
Infrastructure Hook-Ups	Nash	Nash	County	06/11/12	\$75,000.00	11-C-2295	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Provide water hook-ups to 19 residences owned and occupied by LMI persons.

Infrastructure Hook-Ups	Craven	New Bern	City	06/11/12	\$75,000.00	11-C-2296	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Provide connection to public water and sewer to 12 LMI households.
Infrastructure Hook-Ups	Richmond	Rockingham	City	06/11/12	\$40,000.00	11-C-2297	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Connect 13 LMI families to the public sewer line installed with Golden LEAF money.
Infrastructure Hook-Ups	Northampton	Seaboard	Town	06/11/12	\$75,000.00	11-C-2298	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Connect 25 LMI households to an existing 6" public water line.
Infrastructure Hook-Ups	Stanly	Stanly	County	06/11/12	\$75,000.00	11-C-2299	B-11-DC- 37-0001	30 residential water and or sewer connections to existing non-CDBG lines.
Infrastructure Hook-Ups	Surry	Surry	County	06/11/12	\$75,000.00	11-C-2300	B-11-DC- 37-0001	30 residential water connections to existing non-CDBG lines.
Infrastructure Hook-Ups	Randolph	Trinity	City	06/11/12	\$75,000.00	11-C-2301	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Provide taps and connections to 20 single family dwelling units to the City's sewer collection lines.
NC Tomorrow	Beaufort	Aurora	Town	02/06/12	\$50,000.00	11-C-2270	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & administration towards the production of a regional strategic plan.
NC Tomorrow	Avery	Avery	County	02/06/12	\$50,000.00	11-C-2271	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & administration towards the production of a regional strategic plan.
NC Tomorrow	Bladen	Bladen	County	02/06/12	\$50,000.00	11-C-2272	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & administration towards the production of a regional strategic plan.
NC Tomorrow	Catawba	Catawba	County	02/06/12	\$50,000.00	11-C-2273	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & administration towards the production of a regional strategic plan.
NC Tomorrow	Greene	Greene	County	02/06/12	\$50,000.00	11-C-2274	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & administration towards the production of a regional strategic plan.
NC Tomorrow	Hyde	Hyde	County	02/06/12	\$50,000.00	11-C-2275	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & administration towards the production of a regional strategic plan.
NC Tomorrow	Jackson	Jackson	County	02/06/12	\$50,000.00	11-C-2267	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & administration towards the production of a regional strategic plan.
NC Tomorrow	Lincoln	Lincoln	County	02/06/12	\$50,000.00	11-C-2276	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & administration towards the production of a regional strategic plan.
NC Tomorrow	Madison	Madison	County	02/06/12	\$50,000.00	11-C-2268	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & administration towards the production of a regional strategic plan.
NC Tomorrow	Montgomery	Montgomery	County	02/06/12	\$50,000.00	11-C-2277	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & administration towards the production of a regional strategic plan.
NC Tomorrow	Orange	Orange	County	02/06/12	\$50,000.00	11-C-2278	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & administration towards the production of a regional strategic plan.
NC Tomorrow	Pender	Pender	County	02/06/12	\$50,000.00	11-C-2279	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & administration towards the production of a regional strategic plan.
NC Tomorrow	Polk	Polk	County	02/06/12	\$50,000.00	11-C-2269	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & administration towards the production of a regional strategic plan.
NC Tomorrow	Sampson	Sampson	County	02/06/12	\$50,000.00	11-C-2280	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & administration towards the production of a regional strategic plan.

NC Tomorrow	Surry	Surry	County	02/06/12	\$50,000.00	11-C-2281	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & administration towards the production of a regional strategic plan.
NC Tomorrow	Vance	Vance	County	02/06/12	\$50,000.00	11-C-2282	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & administration towards the production of a regional strategic plan.
NC Tomorrow	Wilson	Wilson	County	02/06/12	\$50,000.00	11-C-2283	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & administration towards the production of a regional strategic plan.
Scattered Site Housing	Alexander	Alexander	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2302	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitate 5 substandard homes and reconstruct 1 new double wide mobile home.
Scattered Site Housing	Ashe	Ashe	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2303	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitation for 3 housing units for LMI families and reconstruction of 2 housing units.
Scattered Site Housing	Bertie	Bertie	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2304	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehab 4 LMI housing units; clearance and reconstruction of 2 units for LMI families
Scattered Site Housing	Camden	Camden	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2305	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Clear and reconstruct 4 LMI occupied dwelling units
Scattered Site Housing	Caswell	Caswell	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2306	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitate 7 owner occupied homes and provide emergency repairs to 8 owner occupied homes.
Scattered Site Housing	Columbus	Columbus	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2307	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Clearance, temporary relocation, and reconstruction for 3 housing units
Scattered Site Housing	Currituck	Currituck	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2308	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitate 1 residential dwelling and reconstruct 3 residential dwellings
Scattered Site Housing	Durham	Durham	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2309	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitate 3 units; clearance, temporary relocation, and reconstruction of 2 units.
Scattered Site Housing	Franklin	Franklin	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2310	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitate 1 unit and reconstruct 3 units on site
Scattered Site Housing	Gaston	Gaston	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2311	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitation of 7 housing units for LMI households
Scattered Site Housing	Gates	Gates	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2312	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitate 1 residential dwelling and reconstruct 3 residential dwellings
Scattered Site Housing	Halifax	Halifax	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2313	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Acquisition and reconstruction of a new lot for a replacement housing unit. Will also do housing rehabilitation
Scattered Site Housing	Harnett	Harnett	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2314	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitate 3 dwellings; clearance, relocation, and reconstruction for 2 dwellings
Scattered Site Housing	Haywood	Haywood	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2315	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Reconstruction of 4 dilapidated units for LMI homeowners
Scattered Site Housing	Henderson	Henderson	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2316	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitation of 7 units for LMI owners
Scattered Site Housing	Lee	Lee	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2317	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitation for 3 LMI owners and reconstruction on 2 units
Scattered Site Housing	Madison	Madison	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2318	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitate 7 owner-occupied housing units

Scattered Site Housing	Montgomery	Montgomery	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2319	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitation of 7 owner occupied homes and provide emergency repairs to 8 owner occupied homes
Scattered Site Housing	Northampton	Northampton	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2320	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Housing rehabilitation assistance and/or clearance and relocation for 5 LMI occupied households
Scattered Site Housing	Pender	Pender	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2321	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Clearance and on-site reconstruction of 4 LMI occupied dwelling units
Scattered Site Housing	Person	Person	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2322	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehab and reconstruct dwellings for owners at 50% or below AMI
Scattered Site Housing	Polk	Polk	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2323	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Complete substantial home repairs to 2 homes including upgrading all primary systems such as electrical, heating, and plumbing. Properties will be brought up to NC Building Code and small rehab standards
Scattered Site Housing	Rowan	Rowan	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2324	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitate 6 owner-occupied homes and reconstruction/clearance to 1 owner-occupied home
Scattered Site Housing	Scotland	Scotland	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2325	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Clearance and reconstruction of 5 dilapidated housing units
Scattered Site Housing	Surry	Surry	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2326	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitation of 9 units for LMI homeowners
Scattered Site Housing	Transylvania	Transylvania	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2327	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitation of 7 units for LMI homeowners
Scattered Site Housing	Warren	Warren	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2328	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitation of 1 unit for owner who is 50% below median income level and reconstruct 3 LMI units
Scattered Site Housing	Wayne	Wayne	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2329	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Clearance, temporary relocation, and reconstruction of 4 owner-occupied houses
Scattered Site Housing	Yancey	Yancey	County	06/11/12	\$400,000.00	11-C-2330	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitation of 1 LMI housing unit and clearance/reconstruction of 3 LMI housing units
Small Business & Entrepreneurial Assistance	Moore	Aberdeen	Town	06/25/12	\$225,000.00	11-C-2331	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Building rehab, machinery/equipment purchases for Davenport's Galaxy Grocery and Blue's Crossing Barber Shop. Create nine (9) new jobs.
Small Business & Entrepreneurial Assistance	Bladen	Bladen	County	06/25/12	\$250,000.00	11-C-2332	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Machinery/ equipment for purchase to support Superior Media's expansion. Create ten (10) new jobs and retain 21 positions
Small Business & Entrepreneurial Assistance	Burke	Burke	County	06/25/12	\$250,000.00	11-C-2333	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Machinery/ equipment purchase for Fitzgerald Nursery expansion and increased production. Create ten (10) new jobs.
Small Business & Entrepreneurial Assistance	Orange	Carrboro	Town	06/25/12	\$171,700.00	11-C-2342	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Install a permanent public sewer service along Roberson Street to replace a failing privately-owned sewer service that will benefit more than 20 small businesses that present employ 140. The primary business, ACME Food and Beverage, will hire an additional eight (8) employees.

Small Business & Entrepreneurial Assistance	Cleveland	Cleveland	County	06/25/12	\$250,000.00	11-C-2334	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Machinery and equipment purchase for expansion of MACO (metal fabrication). Create ten (10) new jobs.
Small Business & Entrepreneurial Assistance	Moore	Pinehurst	Village	06/25/12	\$200,000.00	11-C-2335	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Rehabilitation of a commercial building (Railhouse Brewery, LLC) to expand in the area to include a restaurant. Create eight (8) new jobs.
Small Business & Entrepreneurial Assistance	Polk	Polk	County	06/25/12	\$250,000.00	11-C-2336	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Building expansion and purchasing of machinery/ equipment on behalf of Allrail, Inc. (metal recycling/ reuse). Create ten (10) jobs and retain 5 positions.
Small Business & Entrepreneurial Assistance	Halifax	Roanoke Rapids	City	06/25/12	\$250,000.00	11-C-2337	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Building rehabilitation to accommodate the continued growth of White's Auto. Create ten (10) new jobs.
Small Business & Entrepreneurial Assistance	Washington	Roper	Town	06/25/12	\$250,000.00	11-C-2338	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Building rehabilitation and machinery/equipment purchase for Boss Hog's Backyard BBQ. Create ten (10) new jobs.
Small Business & Entrepreneurial Assistance	Burke	Valdese	Town	06/25/12	\$250,000.00	11-C-2339	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Building rehabilitation and machinery/equipment purchase to assist Downtown Delights and Valdese Cleaners. Create eleven (11) new jobs.
Small Business & Entrepreneurial Assistance	Beaufort	Washington	City	06/25/12	\$200,000.00	11-C-2340	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Assist five (5) companies with resources for building rehabilitations, for machinery/equipment purchases, and working capital (not including salaries) in support of their continued growth. Create eight (8) new jobs.
Small Business & Entrepreneurial Assistance	Wilkes	Wilkesboro	Town	06/25/12	\$250,000.00	11-C-2341	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Building rehabilitation to expand Integrity Design & Displays to accommodate an additional fifteen (15) employees.
Talent Enhancement Capacity Building	Moore	Aberdeen	Town	09/12/11	\$50,000.00	11-C-2251	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & Administration- Staff training and salaries to develop a comprehensive community development plan
Talent Enhancement Capacity Building	Northampton	Garysburg	Town	09/12/11	\$50,000.00	11-C-2252	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & Administration- Staff salary and training to submit grant applications and administer grants
Talent Enhancement Capacity Building	Bertie	Lewiston Woodville	Town	08/03/11	\$50,000.00	11-C-2258	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & Administration- Staff salary & training to submit CDBG application with Roanoke Economic Development, Inc.
Talent Enhancement Capacity Building	Bertie	Lewiston Woodville	Town	08/03/11	\$50,000.00	11-C-2259	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & Administration- Staff salary & training to submit CDBG application

Talent Enhancement Capacity Building	Sampson	Roseboro	Town	09/12/11	\$50,000.00	11-C-2254	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & Administration- Staff training in grant writing and administration
Talent Enhancement Capacity Building	Sampson	Roseboro	Town	09/12/11	\$50,000.00	11-C-2253	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & Administration- Staff training in grant writing and administration in partnership with Sampson County CDC, Inc.
Talent Enhancement Capacity Building	Greene	Snow Hill	Town	09/12/11	\$50,000.00	11-C-2255	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & Administration- Training for town staff to write applications and administer future grants
Talent Enhancement Capacity Building	Beaufort	Washington	City	08/03/11	\$50,000.00	11-C-2260	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & Administration- Staff training at East Carolina to retain 1 job and create in-house community development program
Talent Enhancement Capacity Building	Washington	Washington	County	08/08/11	\$50,000.00	11-C-2261	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning- To hire 1 new employee to develop grant applications and administer grants
Talent Enhancement Capacity Building	Perquimans	Winfall	Town	09/20/11	\$50,000.00	11-C-2257	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning- Partnership with Fisher Empowerment Center, Inc. to train staff in grant writing and community development planning
Talent Enhancement Capacity Building	Caswell	Yanceyville	Town	08/03/11	\$50,000.00	11-C-2262	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & Administration- To hire and train new employee with non-profit partner Dillard Educational and Economic Development Service (DEEDS), Inc. to focus on community and economic development needs
Talent Enhancement Demonstration	Moore	Aberdeen	Town	09/20/11	\$50,000.00	11-C-2256	B-11-DC- 37-0001	Planning & Administration- Staff training and partnership with Sandhills Community Action Program, Inc. (SCAP) for grant writing



Figure 1. Distribution of CDBG Grants